
Committee Agenda

1

AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH
Wednesday, 25th October, 2017
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Area Planning Sub-Committee South, which 
will be held at: 

Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
on Wednesday, 25th October, 2017
at 7.30 pm .

Glen Chipp
Chief Executive

Democratic Services 
Officer

A. Hendry Tel: (01992) 564243
Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Members:

Councillors G Chambers (Chairman), A Patel (Vice-Chairman), R Baldwin, A Beales, 
K Chana, L Girling, S Heap, R Jennings, J Jennings, H Kauffman, J Knapman, A Lion, 
L Mead, G Mohindra, S Neville, C P Pond, C C Pond, C Roberts, D Roberts, B Sandler, 
D Sunger and D Wixley

WEBCASTING/FILMING NOTICE

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  The meeting may also be otherwise filmed by 
third parties with the Chairman’s permission.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy.

Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should speak to the webcasting officer or 
otherwise indicate to the Chairman before the start of the meeting.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Public Relations Manager 
on 01992 564039.



Area Planning Sub-Committee South Wednesday, 25 October 2017

2

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  

1. This meeting is to be webcast; 

2. Members are reminded of the need to activate their microphones before 
speaking; and 

3. the Chairman will read the following announcement:

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
internet (or filmed) and will be capable of repeated viewing (or another use by such 
third parties).

If you are seated in the public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras will 
capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will become 
part of the broadcast.

This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should speak the webcasting officer.”

2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS ATTENDING THE COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUB-COMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 8)

General advice to people attending the meeting is attached together with a plan 
showing the location of the meeting.

3. MINUTES  (Pages 9 - 36)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 27 
September 2017.

4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(Director of Governance) To declare interests in any item on this agenda.

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, requires that the permission of 
the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, before urgent 
business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda of which the 
statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 37 - 80)

(Director of Governance)  To consider planning applications as set out in the attached 
schedule

Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control.



Area Planning Sub-Committee South Wednesday, 25 October 2017

3

8. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS  

Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number

Nil Nil Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting.

Background Papers:  Article 17 - Access to Information, Procedure Rules of the 
Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 
report is based;  and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information and in respect of executive reports, the advice of any political 
advisor.

The Council will make available for public inspection for four years after the date of the 
meeting one copy of each of the documents on the list of background papers.



This page is intentionally left blank



Revised ST (August 2017)

Advice to Public and Speakers at the Council’s District Development Management 
Committee and Area Plans Sub-Committees

Are the meetings open to the public?

Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded.

When and where is the meeting?

Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of 
the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and Members of the Committee. 

Can I speak?

If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the 
day before the meeting, by telephoning the number shown on the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak; you must register with 
Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues.

Who can speak?

Three classes of speakers are generally allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a 
group), the local Parish or Town Council and the applicant or his/her agent. In some cases, a 
representative of another authority consulted on the application may also be allowed to 
speak.

What can I say?

You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that 
you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify 
matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Committee members. 

If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Committee will determine the 
application in your absence.

If you have registered to speak on a planning application to be considered by the District 
Development Management Committee, Area Plans Sub-Committee East, Area Plans Sub-
Committee West or Area Plans Sub-Committee South you will address the Committee from 
within the Council Chamber at the Civic Offices. If you simply wish to attend a meeting of 
any of these Committees to observe the proceedings, you will be seated in the public gallery 
of the Council Chamber.

Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection?

Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained from Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be 
copied to the Planning Officer dealing with the application.

How are the applications considered?

The Committee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen 
to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’ 
presentations. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2

http://www.eppingforesdc.gov.uk/


Revised ST (August 2017)

The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or 
his/her agent. The Committee will then debate the application and vote on either the 
recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Committee. Should 
the Committee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, it is 
required to give its reasons for doing so.

An Area Plans Sub-Committee is required to refer applications to the District Development 
Management Committee where:

(a) the Sub-Committee’s proposed decision is a substantial departure from:

(i) the Council's approved policy framework; or
(ii) the development or other approved plan for the area; or
(iii) it would be required to be referred to the Secretary of State for approval as 

required by current government circular or directive;

(b) the refusal of consent may involve the payment of compensation; or

(c) the District Development Management Committee have previously considered the 
application or type of development and has so requested; or

(d) the Sub-Committee wish, for any reason, to refer the application to the District 
Development Management Committee for decision by resolution.

Further Information

Further information can be obtained from Democratic Services or through our leaflet ‘Your 
Choice, Your Voice’.

Page 6



Area Planning Subcommittee South 2017-18 
Members of the Committee and Wards Represented: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
Cllr Chambers 
Buckhurst Hill 

West 

Vice-Chairman 
Cllr Patel 

Buckhurst Hill 
West 

Cllr Baldwin 
Loughton 

Forest 

Cllr Beales 
Loughton 

Forest 

Cllr Chana 
Grange Hill 

 

Cllr Girling 
Loughton 
Broadway 

 

Cllr Heap 
Buckhurst Hill 

East 

Cllr B 
Jennings 

Loughton St 

Cllr J Jennings 
Loughton St 

Mary’s 

Cllr Kauffman 
Loughton St 

Mary’s 

Cllr Knapman 
Chigwell 
Village 

Cllr Lion 
Grange Hill 

 

Cllr Mead 
Loughton 
Fairmead 

Cllr Mohindra 
Grange Hill 

 

Cllr C C Pond 
Loughton 
Broadway 

Cllr C P Pond 
Loughton St 

John’s 

Cllr Wixley 
Loughton 
Fairmead 

Cllr D Roberts 
Loughton 
Alderton 

Cllr Sandler 
Chigwell Row 

Cllr Sunger 
Chigwell 
Village 

Cllr C Roberts 
Loughton 
Alderton 

Cllr Neville 
Buckhurst Hill 

East 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee: Area Planning Sub-Committee 
South

Date: 27 September 2017 

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 
High Street, Epping

Time: 7.00  - 10.15 pm

Members 
Present:

G Chambers (Chairman), A Patel (Vice-Chairman), R Baldwin, A Beales, 
K Chana, S Heap, R Jennings, J Jennings, J Knapman, G Mohindra, 
S Neville, B Sandler, D Sunger and D Wixley

Other 
Councillors: S Murray and S Watson

Apologies: H Kauffman, A Lion, L Mead, C P Pond, C C Pond, C Roberts and D Roberts

Officers 
Present:

S Solon (Principal Planning Officer), S Jhooti (Planning Officer), R Perrin 
(Democratic Services Officer) and J Leither (Democratic Services Officer)

24. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION 

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings.

25. MINUTES 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held 23 August 2017 be taken as read and 
signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

26. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Sunger 
declared a pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of the 
applicant being a client. The Councillor had determined that his interest was 
pecuniary and that he would leave the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon:

 EPF/0479/17 – Amar Nivas, 146 Hainault Road, Chigwell.

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mohindra    
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of one 
of Landvest Ltd being a member Chigwell Association. The Councillor  had 
determined that his interest was non-pecuniary and that he would remain in the 
meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:

 EPF/1390/17 – The Lodge, Woolston Hall, Abridge Road, Chigwell

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



Area Planning Sub-Committee South 27 September 2017

2

(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Neville   
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of the 
his church’s arrangement with Braeside Junior School for three car park spaces. The 
Councillor  had determined that his interest was non-pecuniary and that he would 
remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:

 EPF/1064/17 – Braeside Junior School, 82 Palmerston Road, Buckhurst Hill.

(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Knapman, 
Sandler, Sunger, declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the 
agenda by virtue of the applicant being a Chigwell Parish Councillor. The Councillors  
had determined that their interest was non-pecuniary and that they would remain in 
the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:

 EPF/1932/17 – 17 Chigwell Rise, Chigwell.

(e) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mohindra   
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of the 
applicant being a Chigwell Parish Councillor and his GP. The Councillor  had 
determined that his interest was non-pecuniary and that he would remain in the 
meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon:

 EPF/1932/17 – 17 Chigwell Rise, Chigwell.

(f) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Chambers   
declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of the 
applicant being a political associate. The Councillor  had determined that his interest 
was non-pecuniary and that he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of 
the application and voting thereon:

 EPF/1932/17 – 17 Chigwell Rise, Chigwell.

27. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

28. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 

The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission.

RESOLVED:

That the planning applications numbered 1 – 16 be determined as set out in 
the attached schedule to these minutes.

CHAIRMAN

Page 10



Report Item No:  1

APPLICATION No: EPF/0479/17

SITE ADDRESS: Amar Nivas
146 Hainault Road
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 5DL

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Grange Hill

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of existing building and garage and new build 
three storey residential development comprising of 11 units 
with on site car parking, cycle storage and refuse store

DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=591995

REASON FOR REFUSAL

                                1 By reason of the height and bulk of the proposed building together with the 
intensity of proposed residential use at the site, the development would 
amount to an unsympathetic overdevelopment of the site that fails to respect 
its setting. The proposal would therefore cause significant harm to the 
character and appearance of the locality, contrary to Local Plan and 
Alterations policies CP2 (iv), CP3 (v) and DBE1 (i), which are consistent with 
the National Planning Policy Framework.

                              2 By reason of its height, depth, and siting adjacent to the site boundaries with 
126 and 128 Manor Road, the proposed development would appear 
excessively overbearing when seen from the rear garden areas of those 
properties, including the proposed garden for flats approved at 126 Manor 
Road under planning permission EPF/3281/16. As a consequence, the 
proposal would cause excessive harm to the living conditions of those 
dwellings, contrary to Local Plan and Alterations policies DBE2 and DBE9, 
which are consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework

                              3 Notwithstanding the proposals to improve visibility at the existing accesses to 
the site, by reason of insufficient visibility at the vehicular access and egress 
points of the development together with the arrangements for accessing the 
proposed car park for the development and the intensity of residential use at 
the site, the proposal would create conditions where vehicle movements 
would be likely to conflict with each other and create an unacceptable degree 
of hazard top all road users. Consequently, the proposal would cause 
significant harm to the interests of highway safety and efficiency, contrary to 
Local Plan and Alterations policy ST4 (ii) and (iii)

3

Minute Item 28

Page 11

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=591995


 

Way Forward

A proposal that is significantly less dense, respects the appearance and scale of 
neighbouring buildings and achieves safe and efficient access arrangements could 
overcome the objections raised to this proposal.

4 Page 12



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/1390/17

SITE ADDRESS: The Lodge 
Woolston Hall
Abridge Road
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 6BX

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Chigwell Village

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Residential infill comprising 12 no. residential dwelling 
houses with associated off-street parking, garden space 
and external landscaping

DECISION: Referred to District Development Management Committee

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=594793

Referred to District Development Management Committee to decide the application 
having regard to a validated viability assessment for the proposal demonstrating what an 
appropriate contribution towards affordable housing could be, and Officers 
recommendation.

5Page 13

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=594793


Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/0973/17

SITE ADDRESS: 46 Stradbroke Drive
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 5QZ

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Grange Hill

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of house at 46 Stradbroke Drive and the 
erection of a new building accommodating five flats in 
accordance with conditions of planning permission 
EPF/2987/15.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=593456

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 
FKS_001 FKS_199 FKS_214 FKS_210 FKS_211 FKS_200
FKS_201 FKS_202 FKS_203 FKS_204 
Design & Access Statement

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 

6 Page 14

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=593456


damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

5 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of residents (staff) and visitors vehicles.

6 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tools. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial 
completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance 
with the management and maintenance plan.

7 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if 
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating 
uses having been identified for this site.  

Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works 
or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming 
materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local 
Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the 
adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of 
development works.

Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of 
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required 
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no 
unexpected contamination was encountered.

8 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be 
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

9 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
openings in both flank elevations above ground floor level shall be entirely fitted with 
obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of 
the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that 
condition.

10 Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the Developer shall be 
responsible for the provision and implementation of a Residential Travel Information 
Pack for sustainable transport, approved by Essex County Council, to include five 
one day travel vouchers for use with the relevant local public transport operator. 

11 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

7Page 15



12 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

8 Page 16



Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/1064/17

SITE ADDRESS: Braeside Junior School
82 Palmerston Road
Buckhurst Hill
Essex
IG9 5LG

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

New three-storey classroom building and link element with 
associated alterations, parking and boundary treatments

DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=593685

REASON FOR REFUSAL 

1 By reason of its height, bulk and detailed design, the proposed 
development would not respect its setting, and would be likely to harm 
that of adjacent locally listed buildings at 70, 72, 74 and 76 Palmerston 
Road. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to Local Plan and 
Alterations policies CP2 (iv), CP3 (v), CP7, HC13A and DBE1 (i), which 
are consistent with the National Planning Policy Framework.

Way Forward

Members considered a building of reduced bulk and height together with a more 
traditional design would be likely to address their objection to the proposal.

In addition, while the consequence for parking stress in the locality is not a reason for 
refusal, Members are nonetheless concerned about the potential consequence of the 
proposal for parking stress in the locality and how that might be managed. Members 
therefore, would expect any subsequent application to include information and proposals 
addressing those matters.

9Page 17

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=593685


Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/1404/17

SITE ADDRESS: 25 Felstead Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 3BB

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Roding

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Outline application for new 3 bedroom house adjacent to 
existing.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=594814

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission or two years from the approval of the 
last of the reserved matters as defined in condition 2 below, whichever is the later.

2 a)  Details of the reserved matters set out below ("the reserved matters") shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval within three years from the 
date of this permission:
(i) layout;
(ii) scale;
(iii) appearance;
(iv) access; and
(v) landscaping.
b)  The reserved matters shall be carried out as approved.
c)  Approval of all reserved matters shall be obtained from the Local Planning 
Authority in writing before any development is commenced. 

3 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 

10 Page 18

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=594814


of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

5 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing dwelling at 25 Felstead Road unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

6 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

7 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed at the site.  
The installed cleaning facilities shall be used to clean vehicles wheels immediately 
before leaving the site.

11Page 19



Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/1582/17

SITE ADDRESS: 13 Barfields Path
Loughton
Essex
IG10 3JJ

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Alderton

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Construction of a two storey two bedroomed house. 
Demolition of garage.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=595573

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

3 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan Arboricultural Method Statement and site monitoring 
schedule in accordance with BS:5837:2012 (Trees in relation to design, 
demolition and construction - recommendations) has been submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out 
only in accordance with the approved documents unless the Local Planning 
Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory 
work, until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree 
planting) and implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) 
have been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
These works shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall 
include, as appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be 
retained: proposed finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking 
layouts; other minor artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and 
functional services above and below ground. The details of soft landscape works 
shall include plans for planting or establishment by any means and full written 
specifications and schedules of plants, including species, plant sizes and 
proposed numbers /densities where appropriate. If within a period of five years 
from the date of the planting or establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that 
tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or 

12 Page 20

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=595573


dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of 
the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted at the same 
place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any 
variation.

5 An assessment of flood risk, focussing on surface water drainage, shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
commencement of the development. The assessment shall demonstrate 
compliance with the principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). The 
development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance with the 
approved details.

6 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination 
investigation has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before 
commencement of the Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
the commencement of any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall 
assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property including 
buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining 
land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites 
and ancient monuments and the investigation must be conducted in accordance 
with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model Procedures for the 
Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any subsequent version or 
additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation 
condition that follows]

7 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and 
Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

8 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

9 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities 
for vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used 
to clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

10 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally 
permitted by virtue of Class F of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order  shall be 
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

11 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed 
window openings in the east flank elevation at first and ground floor level shall be 
entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres         

13Page 21



above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition.

14 Page 22



Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/1642/17

SITE ADDRESS: Greengates
24 Albion Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 4RD

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Forest

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Formation of balcony on existing sun shade on rear 
elevation

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=595874

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The balcony hereby approved shall not be used until white glass panel indicated at 
the eastern end of the balcony on drawing numbers 208-DWG-103-10 Rev G, 208-
DWG-104-Rf Rev G, 208-DWG-124 Rev G and 208-DWG-126 Rev G has been 
installed.  Thereafter the glazed panel shall be permanently retained in that position 
unless the Local Planning Authority otherwise agrees in writing.

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

   

15Page 23

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=595874


Report Item No: 8

APPLICATION No: EPF/1643/17

SITE ADDRESS: Roman Lodge
64C Russell Road
Buckhurst Hill
Essex
IG9 5QE

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Erection of pitched roof and the creation of one residential 
unit within roofspace. Erection of front porch.

DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=595875

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 By reason of the degree of increase in height of the building that would arise from 
the proposal, it would be likely to result in the building appearing over-dominant in 
relation to neighbouring buildings, particularly The Oaks. As a consequence the 
proposal would detract from the street scene, causing harm to the character and 
appearance of the locality. Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to Local Plan and 
Alterations policies CP2 (iv), and DBE1 (i), which are consistent with the National 
Planning Policy Framework.

Way Forward

Members did not consider there was a way forward.

16 Page 24

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=595875


Report Item No: 9

APPLICATION No: EPF/1848/17

SITE ADDRESS: Debden Park High School
Willingale Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 2BQ

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Broadway

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Retention of 6th form two storey block with external 
cladding, located to the west side of main building, on a 
permanent basis (this block was granted temporary 
permission under EPF/0605/15). 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=596922

CONDITIONS  

1 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority within 4 months of the date of this 
decision. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tools. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial 
completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance 
with the management and maintenance plan.

17Page 25

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=596922


Report Item No: 10

APPLICATION No: EPF/1870/17

SITE ADDRESS: 54 Ollards Grove
Loughton
Essex
IG10 4DW

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Forest

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Proposed erection of a replacement dwelling as a revision 
to the previous approval ref: EPF/0196/17, with conditions 
discharged under ref: EPF/1606/17 - the revision being the 
addition of a single-storey orangery side extension.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=596998

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The proposed hedge along the majority of the front boundary of the site shall be 
planted at a height of 1metre before the orangery extension hereby approved is first 
brought into use.

3 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
4 plans numbered 1608-4C, -5E, -6B, and -7A, and plans numbered A501 Rev R01, 
A503 Rev RO1, A54 Rev RO1, and A5050 Rev RO1. 

4 The materials to be used on the external surfaces of the development shall be those 
previously approved in the Approval of Details application ref EPF/1606/17.

18 Page 26

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=596998


Report Item No: 11

APPLICATION No: EPF/1895/17

SITE ADDRESS: 2 The Avenue
Loughton
Essex
IG10 4PT

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Forest

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Two semi detached dwellings to rear of 2 The Avenue.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=597097

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 2TALPRL/16/P/001

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

4 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
openings in the north flank elevation shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and 
have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the 
window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

5 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 

19Page 27

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=597097


Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

6 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
any necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to 
present and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, ground waters and surface 
waters, ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows]

7 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, ground waters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows]

8 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation. 
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows]  

20 Page 28



9 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report that 
demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced 
together with any necessary monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of 
any waste transfer notes relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and 
maintenance programme shall be implemented.  

10 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.

11 No development shall take place until details of surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

12 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

13 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in 
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

21Page 29



Report Item No: 12

APPLICATION No: EPF/1916/17

SITE ADDRESS: Northcote
2 Farm Way
Buckhurst Hill
Essex
IG9 5AH

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Conversion of existing loft into habitable master bedroom 
with ensuite, including new dormer windows to rear and 
side elevations

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=597199

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

22 Page 30

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=597199


Report Item No: 13

APPLICATION No: EPF/1930/17

SITE ADDRESS: 95 Jessel Drive
Loughton
Essex
IG10 2EQ

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Broadway

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Single storey front extension with flat roof. 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=597241

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: MDP.JD/01 Rev: B and site location plan.

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

4 If any tree, shrub or hedge shown to be retained in accordance with the approved 
plans and particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes 
severely damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, 
another tree, shrub or hedge of the same size and species shall be planted within 3 
months at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. If within a period of five years from the date of planting any 
replacement tree, shrub or hedge is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree, shrub or hedge of the same 
species and size as that originally planted shall, within 3 months, be planted at the 
same place.

5 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

23Page 31

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=597241


Report Item No: 14

APPLICATION No: EPF/1932/17

SITE ADDRESS: 17 Chigwell Rise
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 6AQ

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Chigwell Village

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolish existing house and erect a new house with rooms 
in the loft.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=597273

CONDITIONS

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the 
expiration of three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance 
with the approved drawings nos: C17/06/100; C17/06/101; C17/06/102 A; 
C17/06/103; C17/06/104 A; C17/06/105

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until 
documentary and photographic details of the types and colours of the 
external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority, in writing. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details.

4 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed 
window opening(s) in the flank elevation(s) shall be entirely fitted with 
obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the 
floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently 
retained in that condition.

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other 
Order revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no 
development generally permitted by virtue of Class B of Part 1 of Schedule 
2 to the Order  shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of 
the Local Planning Authority.

6 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other 
preparatory work, until full details of both hard and soft landscape works 

24 Page 32

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=597273


(including tree planting) and implementation programme (linked to the 
development schedule) have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. These works shall be carried out as 
approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as appropriate, and 
in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed finished 
levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional 
services above and below ground. The details of soft landscape works 
shall include plans for planting or establishment by any means and full 
written specifications and schedules of plants, including species, plant 
sizes and proposed numbers /densities where appropriate. If within a 
period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any 
tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or 
defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as 
that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

7 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning 
facilities for vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been 
installed in accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning 
facilities shall be used to clean vehicles immediately before leaving the 
site.

8 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including 
vehicle movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise 
sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 
18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no 
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

25Page 33



Report Item No: 15

APPLICATION No: EPF/2091/17

SITE ADDRESS: 34 Gladstone Road
Buckhurst Hill
Essex
IG9 5SW

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

First floor rear extension and new windows and doors to 
existing rear ground floor extension.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=597830

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

26 Page 34

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=597830


Report Item No: 16

APPLICATION No: EPF/2614/16

SITE ADDRESS: 21 Park Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 4ES

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Forest

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Front, side and rear extensions at upper ground floor level 
including formation of roof terrace on rear extension.

DECISION: Refuse Permission (Householder)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588214

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 By reason of its height and bulk the proposed development would appear 
excessively overbearing when seen from neighbouring dwellings, especially from 20 
Park Hill and the Manse at Loughton Baptist Church. Furthermore, the proposed 
higher level roof terrace would give rise to excessive additional overlooking of the 
rear gardens of 20 Park Hill and the Manse at Loughton Baptist Church as well as 
the rear elevation of the Manse. As a consequence, the proposal is contrary to Local 
Plan and Alterations policy DBE9, which is consistent with the National Planning 
Policy Framework.

The application site is situated on the north east side of Park Hill, at the end of the road.  
Immediately to the south east is Loughton Baptist Church and a recently constructed 
manse, whose rear garden bounds part of the application site.  Land at the application 
site falls significantly from Park Hill to the rear garden of the application site.  
Consequently, the ground floor at the front elevation appears as a first floor when seen 
from the rear garden.  Land continues to fall towards the rear gardens of houses rear of 
the site on Ollards Grove.  Neighbouring houses on the north east side of Park Hill have 
a similar relationship to properties in Ollards Grove.  Members were aware the 
application site has an unusual relationship to adjacent land to the south east.  It is at 
much higher level and has commanding views over that land from a terrace on the roof 
of a two-storey rear projection at ground and lower ground floor.  Adjacent houses on 
Park Hill are of a similar design with terraces on rear projections.  Since land also rises 
to the north west they are at somewhat higher level.

The Applicant proposes the erection of an extension at upper level over the existing rear 
and side projections. The extensions would have flat roofs with a terrace on the roof 
enclosed by a balustrade.  The addition to the rear would be set in approximately 1m 
from the north west facing flank of the existing rear projection and include a privacy 
screen on the side of the terrace adjacent to 20 Park Hill.  The side addition would 

27Page 35

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=588214


square off the front elevation at ground floor.  It is also proposed to enlarge the existing 
porch.

While no objection was raised to the proposed porch enlargement, the remainder of the 
proposal was found to cause excessive harm that could not be mitigated by any 
reasonable measure.

The proposed rear and side additions would appear as a flat roofed three-storey rear 
projection when seen from the rear and south east.  The proposed development would 
add significant bulk to the rear and south east elevation of the house.  It would noticeably 
add to the wall height on the south-east site boundary.  Due to the level changes 
described and the proximity of the development to the south-east boundary, the 
additional height and bulk added to the house adjacent to the site boundary and on the 
rear elevation would appear excessively overbearing when seen from both the rear 
elevation and garden of the manse.  The proposed rear addition would also appear 
unduly overbearing when seen from the rear garden of 20 Park Hill.

Furthermore, and notwithstanding the fact that 20 Park Hill is at somewhat higher level 
and that the proposed addition to the rear would be set in from the existing flank of no. 
21, the proposed rear addition would appear overbearing when seen from the rear 
terrace of no. 20 due to its proximity and relative height.  The overbearing impact in 
relation to the terrace at 20 Park Hill would be exacerbated by a proposed privacy screen 
on top of the north west flank of the proposed extension, significantly increasing its 
appearance of bulk and relative height when seen from the terrace.  Members concluded 
the cumulative impact would be excessively overbearing.

The proposed privacy screen on top of the north west flank of the proposed extension is 
required to prevent an excessive degree of overlooking of 20 Park Hill from the terrace 
proposed on the roof of the extension.  The screen would adequately safeguard the 
privacy of the terrace at the rear of no. 20.  However, views down to its garden from a 
commanding height would not be screened, resulting in a loss of privacy within that 
garden.  Longer views toward the rear of properties on Ollards Grove are unlikely to 
result in a similar excessive loss of privacy.  However, the relationship of the proposal to 
the manse at Loughton Baptist Church would significantly exacerbate existing 
overlooking of its rear garden and rear elevation by affording a wider field of view from 
an increased elevated position.

Due to the relationship of the proposal to 20 Park Hill and the manse additional privacy 
screening on the rear and side of the proposed terrace would be required to safeguard 
privacy.  While that could be secured by condition, such additional privacy screening 
would serve to increase the degree of overbearing impact on those properties and have 
a negative impact on the appearance of the proposal.  It would also be likely to harm the 
living conditions of the application property.  It is therefore concluded the loss of privacy 
caused by the proposal could not reasonably be mitigated by conditions.

Having regard to the relationship of the proposal to neighbouring land, particularly 20 
Park Hill and the manse at Loughton Baptist Church, Members concluded it would 
appear excessively overbearing when seen from those properties and result in an 
excessive loss of privacy to the rear garden of 20 park Hill and both the rear garden and 
rear elevation of the manse.  Members did not consider the degree of harm caused could 
be mitigated by any reasonable measure.  They did not consider there was a way 
forward for the proposal.

28 Page 36



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH

25 October 2017

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION

PAGE

1. EPF/2114/17 62 Borders Lane
Loughton
Essex
IG10 3QX

Approval Required 

and Granted (with 

Conditions)

38

2. EPF/0877/17 55 Hainault Road
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 5DH

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

46

3. EPF/1961/17 2 Connaught Avenue
Loughton
Essex
IG10 4DP

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

52

4. EPF/2165/17 38 Chigwell Lane
Loughton
Essex
IG10 3NY

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

58

5. EPF/2187/17 43 Smarts Lane
Loughton
Essex
IG10 4BU

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

62

6. EPF/2226/17 46 Spareleaze Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1BT

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

68

7. EPF/2252/17 Oak Field House
Debden Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 2NY

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions)

76

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



123

 

55.2m

63.4m

59.7m

60.7m

57.3m

73
6

3

7

2

13
1

13
7

66

Borders Crescent

Borders W
alk

El S
ub

 Sta

67
 to

 70

4 to 9

1

3
1

1

2

10

100

9

17

13
9

14
3

102

84

67

12

86

18

78

20

61

96

82
58 60
78

88
80

62
68 96

76

1
(PH)

4 to 12

7

10

Golden
Lion

6

64

56

79

75

46

61

69

1 to 3

Hedgers Close

Synagogue

13 to 20

34

35

6

25

El Sub Sta

50

26 to 32

56

34 to 40
42 to 48

12

ST NICHOLAS

BORDER'S LANE

COLSON PATH

BARFIELDS GARDENS

PLA
C

E

Colson Path

TCB
LB

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 1

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2114/17
Site Name: 62 Borders Lane, Loughton, IG10 

3QX
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 38



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/2114/17

SITE ADDRESS: 62 Borders Lane
Loughton
Essex
IG10 3QX

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Alderton

APPLICANT: Mr Cuma Erdogan

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change of Use from A1 to A3.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Approval Required and Granted (with Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=597953

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos:  Technical specification for Purified Air Equipment, Grease 
filters (pre filters), ESP range (particulate control), UV units (odour control) , Helios 
GigaBox Centrifugal fan.  Location Plan, Site Plan, P100 dated 24/7/2017.

3 The restaurant hereby permitted shall not be open to customers / members outside 
the hours of 07:00 to 23:00 on Monday to Saturday and 09:00 to 22:30 on Sundays 
and Bank Holidays.

4 No development shall take place until detailed plans showing the location and layout 
of the ventilation and extraction (including provision of external flue) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Equipment should be installed to suppress and disperse cooking/food preparation 
fumes and smell to a minimum.  The equipment should be effectively operated and 
maintained for so long as the use continues. Details of the equipment should be 
submitted to the Local Authority for comment and should be installed and be in full 
working order to the satisfaction of the Local Authority prior to the commencement of 
use.    

A vertical flue is not suitable for this location, due to the close proximity of residential 
properties instead additional techniques will be required to reduce odours, such as 
an increase in efflux velocity and additional filters, etc. The odour neutralisation 

Page 39

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=597953


equipment installed shall include a type of odour neutralisation device which is, or is 
equivalent to the "Purified Air On 100' or the subsequent updated model. 

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the details so approved 
and shall be maintained as such thereafter.

5 This approval does not permit the sale of food for consumption off the premises.

6  Prior to the installation of any new fixed plant equipment (including air conditioning 
units), details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  

The rating level of noise (as defined by BS4142:2014) emitted from the air 
conditioning/condenser units/mechanical plant shall not exceed 5dB(A) above the 
prevailing background noise level.  The measurement position and assessment shall 
be made according to BS4142:2014.  

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the details so approved 
and shall be maintained as such thereafter.

7 Prior to the premises being brought into use for the purpose hereby permitted, a 
scheme providing for the adequate storage of refuse from this use shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be 
carried out and thereafter retained at all times.

8 Adequate provision for foul drainage from the kitchen shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Authority.  Drains serving the kitchens in the development 
shall be fitted with a grease separator, as detailed in the Building Regulations 2000, 
Approved Document H (Drainage and waste disposal), to comply with prEN 1825-1 
and designed in accordance with prEN 1825-2 (Installations for separation of 
grease) or other effective means of grease removal.  The approved drainage shall 
be retained and maintained while the site is in use.  

.
 

This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be 
determined by Officers if more than four objections material to the planning merits of the proposal 
to be approved are received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, 
Appendix 3).

Description of Site:

The proposal site is within a three storey mixed use mid twentieth century building on the southern 
side of Borders Lane.  The upper floors are in residential use and the ground floor is used as a 
bakery.  It is part of a parade of shops.

The site is a key retail parade which contains the following uses.

Page 40



Unit number Name Use class

58 Takeaway @ Chinaman A5
60 Perfect chicken A5
62 Sprays Bakeries A1
64 Platinum Hairdressers A1
66-70 Nisa Local A1
72 Polly’s Ironing Parlour Sui generis
74 H10 Beauty salon D2
76 Quix newsagent A1

The site is designated as being within an urban area which is outside of a conservation area and is 
not listed.

Description of Proposal: 

This application seeks to notify the Council that applicant is seeking prior approval for a change of 
use from use for purposes within Use class A1 to use for purposes within Use class A3.

Relevant History:

Reference Description Decision
CHI/0189/50 Shopfront Approve
CHI/0334/64 Erection of store shed for shop Approve
CHI/1680/89 shopfront Refuse

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Number of neighbours consulted:  54

Site notice posted: Yes

OBJECTIONS received from 60, 62, 80, 86 and 88 Borders Lane, 47, 62, 64, 74 and 77 Barfields, 
131 Meanley Road and one individual who withheld their address.
Issues raised include:- 

 Increased smell into homes 
 Increased mess in local area 
 Increased noise
 Increased litter in local area
 Insufficient parking due to restricted parking close by. Where will staff park? 
 Currently problem with inconsiderate parking.
 Antisocial behaviour
 There are already numerous food outlets within parade no more need.
 Bad for public health
 Will have a negative impact on trade for existing businesses.
 Will create a vermin problem.
 Number 76 Borders Lane had permission refused for A3 use.
 Flats are now unsaleable as a result of the food uses.

Page 41



In addition, a petition signed by 39 people strongly objecting to the proposal has been submitted.

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL:  Application noted.

PUBLIC HEALTH:  The Purified Air Equipment proposed to be installed, in the above-mentioned 
premises would be acceptable as long as it is correctly sized for the cooking equipment installed  
and is maintained in efficient working order to enable mitigation of odours.

However, the floorplan P100 dated 24/7/2017 is not satisfactory because it does not show the 
configuration of the equipment listed above.  A suitable condition must be included to ensure that 
detailed plans are provided showing the location and layout of the intended equipment.

HIGHWAYS: From a highway and transportation perspective the Highway Authority has no 
comments to make on this proposal as it is not contrary to the Highway Authority’s Development 
Management Policies, adopted as County Council Supplementary Guidance in February 2011, 
and policies ST4 & ST6 of the Local Plan.

WASTE MANAGEMENT: I have looked at the above plans and can confirm that the change of use 
will not affect the domestic waste collection.  Any trade waste agreement will have to be adjusted 
for the change from a bakery to a bakery/restaurant.

LAND DRAINAGE: Having reviewed the above application I have no comments to make on behalf 
of the Engineering, Drainage and Water Team.

Estates and Valuation Section: SUPPORT : There is no café at present on Borders Lane and we 
believe that a café will be a vital addition to the parade as it will improve the mix of uses for the 
local residents and also encourage longer stays on the Parade, which hopefully will assist the 
existing shops on the parade.”

From a freeholder's perspective and local landlord of the other retail premises, this is an excellent 
opportunity to improve the mix of the parade and improve the vitality of the parade and we would 
strongly recommend approval of this application.  It is therefore considered that the proposal will 
not have an undesirable impact on the adequate provision of retail services in this area.  The 
proposal will also not have an adverse impact on the sustainability of the local shopping parade 
within which the application site is situated. 

Main Issues and Considerations:

This application is not for planning permission.  Such permission is deemed to have been given in 
a statutory instrument, the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 
(England) Order 2015.

The matter to decide in this application is whether prior approval of specific matters is required 
under the provisions of Class C of Part 3, Schedule 2 to the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 and if so, whether such prior approval should be 
given.  Class C(a) gives permission for changes of use to restaurants from shops and Class C(b) 
gives permission for any works reasonably required for the development including ventilation 
equipment, subject to a number of limitations set out in Class C.1.

Since the application would result in not more than 150sqm of floorspace within the building being 
used as a restaurant (the application relates to 82 sqm) and details of ventilation, extract and 
storage of rubbish have been included within the application, the limitations specified in Class C.1 
(a) and (b) have been met.

Page 42



The land or the site on which the building is located does not form part of—
 a site of special scientific interest;
 a safety hazard area; or
 a military explosives storage area;

Consequently the limitations of Class C.1 (c) are met.

Since there is no scheduled monument at the site and the building is not listed the limitations of 
Class C.1 (d) and (e) are also met.

The permitted development given in Classes C(a) and C(b) is given subject to the condition that 
before beginning the development, the developer must apply to the local planning authority for a 
determination as to whether the prior approval of the authority will be required as to:
(a) noise impacts of the development,
(b) odour impacts of the development,
(c) impacts of storage and handling of waste in relation to the development,
(d) impacts of the hours of opening of the development,
(e) transport and highways impacts of the development,
(f) whether it is undesirable for the building to change to a use falling within Class A3 

(restaurants and cafes) of the Schedule to the Use Classes Order because of the impact of 
the change of use:
(i) on adequate provision of services of the sort that may be provided by a building 

falling within Class A1 (shops) or, as the case may be, Class A2 (financial and 
professional services) of that Schedule, but only where there is a reasonable 
prospect of the building being used to provide such services, or

(ii) where the building is located in a key shopping area, on the sustainability of that 
shopping area, and

(g) the siting, design or external appearance of the facilities to be provided under Class C(b)

The GPDO states the local planning authority must, when determining an application for a 
determination as to whether its prior approval is required:
(a) take into account any representations made to them as a result of any consultation
(b) have regard to the National Planning Policy Framework

Given the nature of the use and its location it is concluded that prior approval in relation to the 
specific and relatively narrow range of matters specified in the GPDO is required.

Amenity

The application includes details of the means of odour control, together with an associated extract 
fan unit, which could be a source of noise.  No details of any external ducting are provided, 
however, this matter can be addressed in conditions.  This is discussed further below.

In relation to criterion (a), the Public Health service has not raised any objection to the details 
submitted with regard to noise impacts subject to suggested conditions.

In relation to criterion (b), the Public Health service has not raised any objection to the details 
submitted with regard to odour impact subject to suggested conditions.

Given the lack of objection from Public Health and Waste Management, whose Officers had regard 
to the position of flats within a mixed use building and the existing presence of two adjacent take 
away uses (Perfect Chicken and Chinaman), it is concluded any additional harm to neighbouring 
amenity in terms of noise, smell and general disturbance will not be excessively more than that 
which already exists.  The proposal is therefore acceptable in in terms of noise and odours likely to 
be generated by the use.

Page 43



In relation to criterion (c), the Waste Management and Public Health services have not raised any 
objection to the details submitted with regard to the storage and handling of waste due to the 
adequate space within the property. It is recommended that a condition be attached to any 
permission which specifies further what methods are proposed in order that they may be 
controlled. The proposal is therefore acceptable in terms of impacts arising from storage and 
handling of waste

In relation to criterion (d), the hours of opening will 07:00 until 23:00 each day. Conditions attached 
to planning permission was reference EPF/1421/01 at 60 Borders Lane, allow the business to 
operate between 9 and 11 Monday to Saturday and 9am to 10:30 on a Sunday.  It is noted the 
Nisa Local food retail shop at 66-70 is also open until 11pm.  It is therefore considered that the 
proposed opening hours of the restaurant will not cause an excessive additional impact over and 
above what already exists within this shopping parade.

In relation to criterion (e), the no objections were raised by the Highways Authority in regard to 
parking, transport and highway impact therefore refusal on highway grounds could not be justified. 

In relation to the first part of criterion (f), there is an argument that there is no reasonable prospect 
that the unit will be used to provide another A1 use given that the unit is currently vacant and 
nationally demand for retail uses has significantly dropped.  While that is no more than conjecture, 
key matters of substance to consider include the fact that is that there are existing shops within the 
parade which provide a retail function and other comparison and convenience retail units are 
within walking distance of the site.  Furthermore the application is also supported by the Council’s 
Estate’s department as being economically positive for the parade.  It is therefore considered that 
there is adequate provision of services of the sort that may be provided by a building falling within 
Class A1 (shops). 

In relation to the second part of criterion (f), Members are advised that the parade is designated 
local shopping parade in the Local Plan. It is therefore not within a Key Shopping Frontage. (Those 
are only located within Principle Town Centres).  That part of the criterion therefore does not apply.

There is nothing in the National Planning Policy Framework that could support a conclusion that 
the proposal is undesirable.

Design

In relation to criterion (g), members are advised no information has been provided regarding the 
siting, design and external appearance of the ventilation and extraction equipment including the 
provision of an external flue.  However, having regard to the apparent acceptable provision of such 
equipment at adjoining restaurants/takeaways, there is no doubt this matter can be controlled by 
condition.

Other matters

Planning permission was refused for the change of use of from retail shop at 76 Borders Lane to 
use as a cafe/restaurant under reference EPF/2645/16 and EPF/1288/17 (now under appeal) on 
the grounds that:- 
 
(1) It would be harmful to the vitality and viability of the overall parade.
(2) Increase in noise and disturbance to neighbours.
(3) Introduction of smells and odours associated with cooking in close proximity to a built up 

residential area.

Page 44



The previously refused application is not a material consideration in the determination of this 
application as prior approval legislation does not allow the Council to consider the vitality and 
viability of shops outside of key frontage areas.

Furthermore the applicant for the applications at 76 Borders Lane provided insufficient information 
to allow the Public Health team to make an informed decision on the application, therefore it was 
considered appropriate to refuse the application on the grounds that the proposal could harmfully 
increase noise and odour pollution.  Unlike the current proposal, which proposes an advanced 
filtration system, It was evident the refused proposal did not include the necessary equipment to 
suppress and disperse smells or attenuate noise.  The Public Health team consider in this case 
that there is sufficient information submitted to ensure that there will be adequate pollution control, 
subject to conditions securing their installation and the details of any external ducting.

Furthermore the application site adjoins existing strong odour producing takeaway uses already.  
While there will be some cumulative impact, the degree is very limited due to the provision of 
appropriate odour control equipment within the building.  Consequently, any potential harm as a 
result of this application being approved will be covered by that already created in this end of the 
parade.  That contrasts with the situation at 76 Borders Lane, which would have been a more 
isolated A3 use at the other end of the parade, adjacent to a house.

The impact of the proposal on the sale or value of neighbouring residential properties falls outside 
the scope of the criteria on which this type of application can be assessed.  This matter is 
therefore not material to the application’s determination.

Conclusion:

The proposal complies with the provisions of Class C of Part 3 of Schedule 2, to the Town and 
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 and it is therefore 
deemed to constitute permitted development.  Given the nature of the use and its location it is 
concluded that prior approval in relation to a specific and relatively narrow range of matters is 
required.  On the basis of the above analysis it is concluded the proposal is acceptable subject to 
compliance with conditions proposed by officers therefore it is recommended prior approval for the 
proposal is granted on that basis.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Sukhi Dhadwar 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564597

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 45



123

 

64.3m

56.4m

59.4m

RH

Und

FW

RH

FF

FF

Ward Bdy

FW

FW

FF

11
4

10
6

67

59

63

110

84

100

1

8

92
5

Savill's Cottages

122

9

1

59
a

57

51

49

49
a

74

55

72c

70

72a

Cottage
Holly

72

72b

Shelter

H
A

IN
A

U
LT R

O
A

D

HAINAULT

THE CHASE

GROVE

LB

Path (um)

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 2

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/0877/17
Site Name: 55 Hainault Road, Chigwell, IG7 

5DH
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 46



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/0877/17

SITE ADDRESS: 55 Hainault Road
Chigwell
Essex
IG7 5DH

PARISH: Chigwell

WARD: Chigwell Village

Grange Hill

APPLICANT: Mr A Taheam

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Front garden boundary walls and gates and new paving.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=593136

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

3 The vehicular access shall be constructed with an appropriate dropped kerb 
vehicular crossing of a maximum width of 4.5 metres. The width of the access at its 
junction with the highway shall not be less than 3 metres and shall be provided of 
the footway.

4 Prior to first use of the new access any redundant dropped kerbs shall be fully 
reinstated including the footway as necessary.

5 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 47

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=593136


This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

The application has previously appeared before committee but deferred for more information 
regarding foundations of the wall and landscaping and these have been submitted and they 
indicate that there is sufficient space for meaningful landscaping and that the works can be carried 
out without harm to the neighbours hedge.

The original report is reproduced below.

Description of Site:

55 Hainault Road is a two storey detached dwelling located in Chigwell, the building is not listed, is 
not within a conservation area and is not situated within the Green Belt. 

Description of Proposal:

Front garden boundary walls and gates and new paving.  It is also proposed to adjust the position 
of one vehicular crossover.

Relevant Site History:

EPF/0394/14 – Front boundary wall, gates and railings (11/04/2014) – Grant Permission

EPF/1615/10 – Front boundary wall, gates and railings (01/10/2010) – Grant Permission (With 
Conditions)

Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:

CP2 – Protecting the quality of the Rural and Built Environment
DBE9 – Loss of Amenity
DBE10 – Design of Residential Extensions
ST4 – Highway Safety

National Planning Policy Framework

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Draft Local Plan

At the current time, only limited weight can be applied to the Draft Local Plan, however the Draft 
Plan and evidence base should be considered as a material consideration in planning decisions. 
The relevant policies in this case are as follows:

DM9 – High Quality Design

Page 48



Summary of Representation:

No. of neighbours consulted – 5 

53 HAINAULT ROAD: Strong Objection – concern regarding incorrect information regarding an 
existing conifer hedge along the boundary at 53 Hainault Road and inadequate information 
regarding the proposed foundations for the proposed side wall along the boundary of 55 Hainault 
Road.

CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL – The council OBJECTS to this application because the overall 
height is deemed excessive and the absence of confirmation that the proposal would allow for 
adequate parking facilities is unacceptable.

Main Issues and Considerations:

There have been two previous applications of a similar nature on the site, which have been 
granted permission in 2010 and 2014 respectively.

The main issues to consider for this application are as follows:

Design
Impact on Living Conditions
Highway Safety and Parking

Design

The proposed walls would be constructed from brick with metal railings. The front boundary wall 
would be a maximum 2.0 metres high at the front with electronically operated sliding gates. The 
proposed side boundary walls would have a change in height from 1.5 metres to 1.8 metres. The 
maximum height of the brickwork to the side walls would be 1 metre, with 0.5 – 0.8 metres of metal 
railings fitted on top of the brick wall. 

Chigwell Parish Council objected to the application, stating that the overall height is deemed 
excessive. However, it is worth mentioning that there are similar front boundary walls found along 
Hainault Road, with 51 Hainault Road and 61 Hainault Road notable examples. The proposed side 
walls have been redesigned so as to be more sympathetic to neighbouring properties, with revised 
plans submitted reducing the height of the side walls and lessening the visual impact to 
neighbouring properties.   

Overall, the design of the proposal is considered to complement the setting of the house and 
respect the character and appearance of the locality.

Impact on Living Conditions

53 Hainault Road objected strongly to the application, with concern regarding the lack of 
information in relation to an existing conifer hedge situated along the boundary with 55 Hainault 
Road. While one of the side walls would be located close to the existing conifers, it is proposed 
that the side wall would be constructed with pad and beam foundations, with the foundation not 
exceeding more than 0.5 metres so as not to damage the existing trees. After consulting Council’s 
Trees and Landscaping Team, it is considered these foundations are acceptable.  Since the 
proposal can be carried out without causing significant harm to the neighbour’s conifer hedge, the 
proposal would safeguard the living conditions of no. 53 Hainault Road.

In relation to no. 57 Hainault Road, that property is on slightly higher ground and in common with 
the application site, has a wide frontage.  That relationship somewhat lessens the impact of any 

Page 49



boundary treatment on the boundary with no. 55.  More significantly, the redesign of the side 
boundary walls to achieve a more open appearance by reducing the height of the brick component 
ensures the wall will not appear excessively overbearing or create an inappropriate sense of 
enclosure when seen from no. 57 Hainault Road.  Accordingly, the proposal would safeguard the 
living conditions of no. 57 Hainault Road.

Highway Safety and Parking

Chigwell Parish Council also objected to inadequate parking shown within the proposal. The 
revised plans show that 4 no. parking spaces will be provided, thus resolving this particular 
concern.

Since the gates would be set back from the carriageway an appropriate distance the proposal 
would allow for their operation without causing obstruction to vehicular traffic.  That is in the 
interests of safety as well as the free flow of traffic.  Due to the alterations to the existing vehicular 
access caused by this proposal, Essex Highways Department have requested that the conditions 
dealing with the dimensions of the altered vehicular crossovers and reinstatement of footway are 
included in any planning permission given.

As these conditions relate to highway safety, it is considered that these conditions are relevant and 
necessary to the proposal.

Conclusion

As the design of the proposal is favourable and living conditions of neighbours together with the 
interests of highway safety are secured it is recommended that planning permission is granted 
subject to conditions.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Alastair Prince
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564462

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 50



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Page 51



123

 

32.9m

32.9m

34.4m

Hawke House

10
8

Crown

151

House

PH

1

10
4

10
6

137

13590

10
0

133

A - E 1

11
2 

to
 1

20

1
to

4

Co
nn

au
gh

t
Ho

us
e

9

14
a

14

12

4

8
10

Forest Hall

5 
to

 1
0

Connaught
Place

98

94

10
2

147

149
145143

11
0

Bank

18
a

18

26

20
a

20

14

26
a

7
9 to 11

5

1

Masonic Hall
1a1b

Chestnuts

Ollards

8

The

Court

1 to 6

El
 S

ub
 S

ta

1 to 6

15

3

7

11

3b

9
3a

17

18

14

Homecherry House

14

Church

12

Loughton Union

3

6

2
22

3

26

High Oaks

16

21

5

11

HIG
H R

OAD

C
O

N
N

A
U

G
H

T A
V

EN
U

E

Park

Car Park

Car

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 3

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/1961/17
Site Name: 2 Connaught Avenue, Loughton, 

IG10 4DP
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 52



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/1961/17

SITE ADDRESS: 2 Connaught Avenue
Loughton
Essex
IG10 4DP

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Forest

APPLICANT: Mr R Walker

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Amendment to approved applications EPF/2826/16 and 
EPF/0029/17 (for two storey side and rear extension, alterations to 
roof and elevations, including removal of garage and outbuilding at 
the rear) comprising the provision of a games room in the loft with 
2 dormer windows on the front elevation, and one dormer window 
at the rear.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=597398

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation for approval is contrary to a) 
an objection from a local council and b) to five or more objections received, which are material to 
the planning merits of the proposal, (pursuant to the constitution, part three: scheme of delegation, 
appendix 3.). 

Page 53

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=597398


Description of Site:

A vacant Victorian two storey house located on a prominent and triangular corner site at the 
junction of Connaught Avenue and Ollards Grove. The property is not listed nor does it lie in a 
Conservation area. The property has been vacant and ‘bricked up’ for a number of years, and the 
site is bounded by a hoarding.
 
Description of Proposal:

Amendment to previously approved applications EPF/2826/16 and EPF/0029/17 (for two storey 
side and rear extensions, alterations to roof and elevations, including removal of garage and 
outbuilding at the rear) comprising the provision of a games room in the loft with 2 dormer windows 
on the front elevation, and one dormer window at the rear. 
 
Relevant History:

EPF/1483/13 – approval granted for two 2 storey side and rear extensions to the existing house on 
the site, single storey side garage extension, alteration to roof and elevations, including removal of 
garage and outbuilding at the rear. This consent has not been implemented.

EPF/2826/16 – approval granted for renewal of the above consent EPF/1483/13 – to extend the 
existing house on the site.

EPF/0029/17 – approval granted for amendments to EPF/2826/16 - comprising the conversion of 
the previously proposed ground floor garage to a larger living room ( with provision of car parking 
area to the rear), and provision of a small first floor extension to form an en suite bathroom to 
bedroom 4.

In addition to the above consents - for extending the existing dwelling on the site -four planning 
applications for redevelopment of the site (for blocks of 9, 8, 6, and 7 flats respectively) have been 
refused in the last 3 years with the 8 and 6 unit schemes also having been dismissed on appeal. 
The latest refusal for a 7 flat redevelopment scheme can still be appealed up to 5/1/18.

Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:

DBE1 – Design of new buildings.
DBE9 – Loss of amenity.
DBE10 – Residential extensions.

NPPF:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Draft Local Plan

At the current time, only limited material weight can be applied to the Draft Local Plan, however 
the Draft Plan and evidence base should be considered as a material consideration in planning 
decisions. The relevant policies in this case are as follows:

DM9 - High Quality Design

Page 54



DM10 – Housing Design and Quality

Summary of Representations:

Amended plans have been submitted on this application reducing the number of dormer windows 
on the front elevation from 3 to 2, and the following are comments received after re consultation 
was carried out:-

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – The Committee reiterated its previous comments which were - 
object to this application on the grounds that it would be overbearing and over dominant within the 
site. It was also out of character and would spoil the street scene. The proposal was therefore 
contrary to Local Plan and Alteration policies CP2 (iv), CP7, and DBE(i) which were consistent 
with the NPPF.
 
LRA PLANS GROUP - We still object to this application. As we said in our previous objection 
dated 20/08/17 – i) the current approved building is already massive in relation to the plot, and ii) 
the addition of the dormers at roof level will accentuate this appearance, and indeed will make it 
look more like a block of flats. These points remain the same despite the reduction in the number 
of dormers from 3 to 2. Several planning applications for flats on the site have been turned down.

NEIGHBOURS – 22 properties re notified on the amended plans and 4 replies have been 
received:-

12 CONNAUGHT AVENUE – object – proposed design comes very close to footpaths on Ollards 
Grove and Connaught Avenue, dormer windows will represent a 3 storey dwelling that has 
previously been turned down and would be out of keeping, the proposal will reduce light to houses 
on the other side of Connaught Avenue, it will be an overdevelopment.

5, CONNAUGHT HILL – object – the two dormers on the central section of the roof would be 
bulkier than the 3 dormers and would truly introduce a 3 storey building. We reiterate our earlier 
objections – the scale and bulk of the extensions are excessive and dominate the simple form of 
the original dwelling, overlooking will be caused to no.6 Connaught Avenue, yet another 
application shows disregard to the views of the community and to the views of planning inspectors 
who rejected previous appeals.

3a, CONNAUGHT AVENUE – object on similar grounds as that above from 5, Connaught Hill – 
plus - if approved the proposal will form the basis of yet another application to be lodged for a 
block of flats which will include additional windows in a third floor.

6, CONNAUGHT HILL – object – whether there are 2 or 3 dormers in the roof this is a blatant 
attempt to establish third floor living accommodation in the property. The reduction in the number 
of dormer windows in the roof is irrelevant to the central issue, which is the overdevelopment of 
the site. The proposed amendment is contrary to Local Plan and Alterations policies CP2 (iv), and 
DBE1 (i) under the National Planning Policy Framework. In summary we object to the inclusion of 
dormer windows which is supported by the Inspector’s conclusions (EPF2603/14 and 
EPF/1990/16).

Issues and Considerations:

It is most regrettable that this Victorian house has been empty, with a site hoarding around it’s 
boundary, for several years now. It is also the case that several planning applications have been 
submitted to redevelop the site for flats and that these have been refused on grounds of excessive 
bulk, proximity to the side boundaries, and poor design. In addition an application was lodged in 
2016 to renew the 2013 consent to extend the existing dwelling, and another lodged to make quite 

Page 55



minor amendments to it under EPF/0029/17. This current application proposes a second 
amendment to this previous approval to retain and extend the existing dwelling.   

The amendment proposed is the creation of two dormer windows in the front main existing roof 
slope and one in the rear roof slope. The original proposal for 3 dormer windows at the front, 
including one on each of the proposed two storey side extensions, was felt to provide a poor 
appearance and would have given too much prominence to the proposed two storey side wings. 
These dormers are modest in size with gabled roof features over and there are other examples of 
this form of modest second floor dormers in the locality. The proposed house, as extended, would 
still be essentially a two storey building with limited roof space accommodation, and a full 3 storey 
appearance would not be created. On this basis the dormers are acceptable in terms of their size, 
position, and appearance.

In terms of overlooking the proposed rear dormer would be sited some 6.8m away from the 
boundary with no. 6 Connaught Avenue. It would also have any views over the front area of no.6 
and a garage outbuilding. It will not give rise to any unacceptable loss of privacy.

It needs to be emphasised that this current application still proposes retention of the existing 
house - albeit with sizeable two storey extensions. However, the mass of the building is still 
smaller than any of the recent proposals for redevelopment of the site, and of course just one 
dwelling, and not a numbers of flats, would be created. In this context the retention and extension 
of the existing house, with the proposed dormer windows, would still form an acceptable 
development of a site which has an awkward thin triangular shape. 

Finally, some objectors think that this application seeks to gain an implicit approval to 
accommodation in the third floor - so as to justify a third floor being provided in future applications 
to redevelop the site for flats. However, officers are obliged only to assess the planning merits of 
applications submitted to them. These merits have been improved with revised plans now showing 
a reduction and repositioning of the proposed dormers. 
 
Conclusion:

For the reasons set out in the report above it is recommended that conditional planning permission 
be granted. 

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

Page 56



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Page 57



123

 

25.9m

30.5m

38.4m

CR

30

45

27

24

26

2

9

15

El

37

Sub Sta

32

1

Oakwood House

40

9

38

4 Gatehouse

Roding
House

36

OAKWOOD HILL

OAKWOOD HILL INDUSTRIAL ESTATE

LADYFIELDS

FB

El Sub Sta

Km P 16.0

SL

SL

MP 13

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 4

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2165/17
Site Name: 38 Chigwell Lane, Loughton, IG10 

3NY
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 58



Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/2165/17

SITE ADDRESS: 38 Chigwell Lane
Loughton
Essex
IG10 3NY

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Alderton

APPLICANT: Mr Baljit Virk

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Warehouse extension with addition of windows to side elevations

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=598236

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
openings in the northern flank elevations shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass 
and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which 
the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions).

Description of Site:

The site is an existing light industrial building situated within the Oakwood Hill Industrial Estate. 
The application building in question is three storeys high and is adjacent to number 40 Chigwell 
Lane to the south which is also a three storey high industrial building owned by the applicant.  To 
the north are residential two storey semi-detached dwelling adjacent to the eastern end of the site 

Page 59

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=598236


and vacant land in the Applicant’s ownership elsewhere.. The site is considerably set back from 
the highway. To the west is Unit 8 of the Industrial Estate., it is a large three storey building.

Description of Proposal:

Warehouse extension with addition of windows to side elevations. The proposal would result in a 
first floor front extension which would be 6m high, 16.3m wide and 2.5m deep.  Glazing would be 
proposed to the front and side elevation of the application building.

Relevant history

None

Policies Applied

Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations

CP2 Quality of Rural and Built Environment
DBE9 Loss of Amenity

NPPF:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Draft Local Plan:

At the current time, only limited weight can be applied to the Draft Local Plan, however the Draft 
Plan and evidence base should be considered as a material consideration in planning decisions. 
The relevant policies in this case are as follows:

DM9 High Quality Design

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Number of neighbours consulted:  1
Site notice posted:  No, not required
Responses received: None received from neighbours.
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – OBJECT to the proposal on the basis of loss of amenity to 
nearby residential dwellings from the glazing proposed.

Issues and Considerations:

Design

The proposal would be limited in its scale and size, projecting only 2.5m along part of the street 
facing elevation. It would appear subservient to the application building and its surroundings. 

Living Conditions of neighbours

The proposed glazing in north elevation of the existing warehouse would face vacant land which is 
in the Applicant’s ownership.  As a consequence, the proposed glazing would not result in a 

Page 60



significant increase in the level of overlooking of any dwellinghouse or garden.  No material 
increase in overlooking of residential properties to the north of the site would arise from the 
windows since they would be positioned a sufficient distance beyond their rear garden boundaries 
to prevent that.  

The proposed glazing to the west and south of the application building would not result in a 
material increased in overlooking to number 40 Chigwell Lane (Industrial Building) or Unit 8 at 
Oakwood Industrial Estate compared to the existing situation.

Conclusion

The proposal is appropriately designed and would safeguard the character and appearance of the 
locality, the amenities enjoyed by the occupants of nearby neighboring properties. Accordingly, it is 
recommended that conditional planning permission be granted.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Sukhdeep Jhooti
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564 298

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 61



123

 

36.3m

34.7m

35.1m

33.8m

34.4m

41.5m

ED
 & W

ard Bdy

C
R

Church

Club

2 to 6

Sub Sta
El

Garage

1

16
6

12

16
2

PO

15
6

148

199

187a

193

Bank

195

187b
189

191

1

Lopping Hall

197

13
8

14
0PH

to

13

1

3

12
6

to13
2

13
6

12
8

A - E 1

20

39

18
a

31

19

18

9

14
a

15

11

14

12

4

10

18
a

18

26

20
a

20

14

26
a

7
9 to 11

5

32
34

38

28

19

36

Masonic Hall

7

11

9

St Mary's

20
0

Cen
tric

 P
ar

ad
e

17
2

17
4

18
0

18
2

17
8

209

207

Bank17
0

18
8 t

o 1
94

1

1 t
o 9

To
wn

vie
w

6

1a

16
6b

5

30

16
8

7

16
6a

3
7

13

50
40

11
21

60

1

42
 to

 4
6

23

14
 1

6 
18

Police Station

8

49

15
8

20
a

15

24
24

a

20

69
65

73

42

30

61

50
52

Beech Terr

81

9

1

89

60

63

50

29

48

42

39

50
a

51

6

60

7

S
T

A
T

IO
N

 R
O

A
D

Brook Path

H
IG

H
 R

O
AD

CL
IF

TO
N

 R
O

AD

H
IG

H
 B

EEC
H

 R
O

A
D

S
M

A
R

T
'S

 LA
N

E

JACKSON ALLEY

El Sub Sta

D Fn

TCB

GP

PC

CUTHBERTS ALLEY

CUTHBERTS ALLEY

M
EW

S

Park
Car

SM
AR

TS
 L

AN
E

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 5

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2187/17
Site Name: 43 Smarts Lane, Loughton, IG10 

4BU
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 62



Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/2187/17

SITE ADDRESS: 43 Smarts Lane
Loughton
Essex
IG10 4BU

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton Forest

APPLICANT: Craig Fennings

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Modification & extension of existing ground floor rear extension, 
with flat roof.

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=598337

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The existing fencing at the boundary with 45 Smarts Lane shall be retained.

3 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no vent, grill or other opening 
shall be inserted in the side elevations of the rear extension without the prior written 
permission of the Local Planning Authority.

4 Access to the roof over the extension hereby approved shall be for maintenance or 
emergency purposes only and the roof shall not be used as a seating area, roof 
garden, terrace, patio or similar amenity area.

5 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

6 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 

Page 63

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=598337


Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

House on the end of a terrace of three. The style of the houses, with front bay windows, suggest 
that the terrace dates from at least 1900 but numerous alterations have been made to the fronts. 
The terrace has a front parapet hiding a butterfly roof (an inverted pitched roof).

Not listed or in a conservation area.

Description of Proposal: 

Modification & extension of existing ground floor rear extension, with flat roof.

The single storey extension would wrap around a rear corner to the footprint of the house. The 
extension would partially infill between the rear bay, the outrigger, of this turn of the century 
terrace house and a side boundary. However, an area open to the sky would be left to create a 
small courtyard/large light well type area by the rear elevation to the main body of the house.

The extension would have a depth with no. 41 of 2.0m and a depth with no. 45 of 6.6m. The 
extension would have a maximum width of 4.5m, infilling between both side boundaries. The roof 
of the extension would effectively be flat with a maximum height of 2.6m. A lantern style roof light 
with a maximum height of 3.7m would be set on the flat roof.

Relevant History:

EPF/2642/16 - Ground floor side extension and enlargement of roof to form gable ends and 
provision of three front dormer windows and two at the rear. – 

Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:

CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
DBE8              Private Amenity Space
DBE9 Loss of Amenity
DBE10 Design of Residential Extensions

NPPF:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Page 64



Draft Local Plan:

At the current time, only limited weight can be applied to the Draft Local Plan, however the Draft 
Plan and evidence base should be considered as a material consideration in planning decisions. 
The relevant policies in this case are as follows:

DM9 High Quality Design

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Number of neighbours consulted:  6
Site notice posted:  No, not required
Responses received:  No response received from neighbours 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL:  The Committee OBJECTED to this application on the ground that 
it would leave too little private amenity space. The proposal would have a detrimental impact on 
neighbours. It was an overdevelopment in relation to the character of neighbouring properties.
This was contrary to Policies DBE8 and DBE2 of the Epping Forest District Council’s adopted 
Local Plan & Alterations.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The main issue in this case is the impact to neighbours.

Two neighbours could be affected by this proposal; no. 41 to the south and no. 45 to the north.

The extension would be some 2m deeper than the adjoining rear elevation of no. 41. Given the 
limited height on the boundary, where a parapet wall would be some 3m in height, and the 
orientation in relation to the neighbour, it is considered that no material adverse impact sufficient to 
adequately justify refusal would result to the occupiers of no. 41.

Based on a site visit to the application property and Council records (EPF/1555/86) it is 
understood that the property to the north, no. 45, has a circular window and a standard window on 
the side elevation facing the position of the proposed extension. The circular window would seem 
to be to a staircase and the other side window to a kitchen. The side window to the kitchen 
appears to be obscure glazed. The kitchen also has a window on the rear elevation. There is 
glazing on another rear elevation by an internal corner in the footprint of no. 45, where a rear bay 
meets the original house. This glazing would seem to be to a dining room.

The circular window is to a non-habitable room. The other side window is to a room which also has 
a rear window. The glazing to the dining room already receives no direct sunlight due to the 
position of the existing built form of the application property. The window is set away from the 
boundary with the application property by the width of a walk way, of some 1m width. This window 
takes light in the form of diffused light and the proposal would make no significant alteration to the 
existing situation. 

The boundary fence, which is some 1.8m in height with trellis panels above, would be retained and 
this would make the appearance of the side elevation of the extension acceptable in terms of the 
view from no. 45.

The comment of the Town Council regarding a detrimental impact to neighbours is noted but for 
the reasons set out above is not supported.

The property has a useable private amenity area some 4m wide by 5.5m deep. The proposal 
would reduce the depth of the amenity area by some 2m. The property would retain an outside 
amenity area which is considered to be sufficient and clearly an area adequate for the needs of the 

Page 65



applicant, who is the occupant of the house. Therefore, and notwithstanding the comment of the 
Town Council, it is considered that the limited degree of remaining private amenity space could not 
adequately justify refusal.

Conclusion:

The particular circumstances of the site and its setting are such that no adverse impact of a 
sufficient degree to reasonably justify refusal would result. An adequate open area to form a 
private amenity area would remain. The proposal would result in a house in a sustainable location 
to be to a modern standard by its arrangement of accommodation. 

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Jonathan Doe
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564103

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 66



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Page 67



123

 

58.8m

61.9m

53.9m

50.6m

60

59

58

4

86

56

50

57

52

88

105

80

93

36

40

49

39

82a

SPARELEAZE HILL

LB

LOUGHTON

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 6

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2226/17
Site Name: 46 Spareleaze Hill, Loughton, IG10 

1BT
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 68



Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/2226/17

SITE ADDRESS: 46 Spareleaze Hill
Loughton
Essex
IG10 1BT

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Marys

APPLICANT: Mrs Shirley Lane

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Demolition of an existing house and erection of a replacement 6 
bed dwelling

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=598513

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos:
314-EX-01
314-PL-01
314-PL-02
314-PL-03
314-PL-04
Design and Access Statement 

3 No construction works above ground level shall take place until documentary and 
photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

4 No development shall take place until details surface water disposal have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garage hereby approved shall be 

Page 69

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=598513


retained so that it is capable of allowing the parking of cars together with any 
ancillary storage in connection with the residential use of the site, and shall at no 
time be converted into a room or used for any other purpose.

6 No development shall take place until details of the landscaping of the site, including 
the vehicular double gates and pedestrian gate and including the proposed times of 
proposed planting (linked to the development schedule), have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved landscaping 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and at those times.

7 No development shall take place until details of tree planting, as indicated on 
drawing 314-PL-02, including positions or density, species and planting size and a 
timetable for implementation (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. If within a period of five years from the date of 
planting any tree, or replacement, is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective, another tree of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives it's written consent to any variation.

8 No development shall take place until details of the proposed surface materials for 
the driveway and front path have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The agreed surfacing shall be made of porous materials 
and retained thereafter or provision shall be made and retained thereafter to direct 
run-off water from the hard surface to a permeable or porous area or surface within 
the curtilage of the property. The agreed surface treatment shall be completed prior 
to the first occupation of the development or within 1 year of the substantial 
completion of the development hereby approved, whichever occurs first.

9 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of residents and visitors vehicles.

10 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tools. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial 
completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance 
with the management and maintenance plan.

11 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if 
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating 
uses having been identified for this site.  

Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works 
or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming 
materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local 
Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the 

Page 70



adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of 
development works.

Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of 
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required 
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no 
unexpected contamination was encountered.

12 Concurrently with the construction of the house hereby approved and prior to first 
occupation of the house hereby approved a sight screen of a solid and opaque 
material of 1.7m in height relative to the surface of the terrace shall be erected along 
the side edge of both terraces nearest the properties on adjoining plots,  as 
indicated on drawing 314-PL-02 and side elevations to drawing 314-PL-04. The 
sight screens shall thereafter be retained as such.

13 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally 
permitted by virtue of Class A of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order  shall be 
undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

14 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended (or any other Order 
revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) no window or other opening 
shall be created in a flank elevation above ground floor level without the prior written 
permission of the Local Planning Authority.

15 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

16 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for 
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed at the site. 
The installed cleaning facilities shall be used to clean vehicles immediately before 
leaving the site.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three: Scheme of Delegation, Appendix 3)

Description of Site:

Detached house on the north-western side of Spareleaze Hill.

Page 71



The existing house on the site has a footprint which completely fills the width of the plot. However, 
this is at ground floor only. At first floor there is a space of some 2m between the form of the house 
and the right hand boundary when viewed from the road, to the left hand side a space of some 
3.5m. Mature landscaping at the front of the site and along the sides hide these gaps at first floor 
level. The existing property appears to have had extensions and does not have a good 
appearance.

Surrounding land rises to the right hand side, to the northeast, and falls to the left hand side, to the 
southwest. Ground rises somewhat to the rear, to the north.

The site is not in a Conservation Area and the property is not a Listed Building.

Description of Proposal: 

Demolition of an existing house and erection of a replacement 6 bed dwelling.

The replacement house would have a width of 15.4m, leaving an isolation space of at least 1m 
from both side boundaries, and have a maximum depth of 16.5m. The house would have a height 
to the top of its roof of 9m.

The front elevation would have a contemporary appearance with three bays each with a gable 
above. An unusual feature of the design would be a rain screen, an arrangement of horizontal 
timber bars, to a large window above the canopied entrance. Timber rain screen cladding would 
also be set on parts of the side bays. The side bays would be of white coloured render and the 
central bay would have a darker tone of brickwork. The roof would be of dark grey roof tiles. 

On the rear elevation of the proposed house two single storey rear bays to either side would form 
sitting out areas or terraces at first floor level; the roof areas of these bays would be enclosed by a 
glass balustrade. The rear elevation would have three gables, the two to the sides containing 
glazing.

Relevant History:

EPF/1129/16 - Erection of a five-bed detached replacement dwelling, with the demolition of the 
existing house. – Granted 14/12/2016

Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:

CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
DBE1              Design of New Buildings
DBE2              Effect on Neighbouring Properties
DBE6              Car Parking in New Development
DBE8              Private Amenity Space
DBE9 Loss of Amenity

NPPF:

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Page 72



Draft Local Plan:

At the current time, only limited weight can be applied to the Draft Local Plan, however the Draft 
Plan and evidence base should be considered as a material consideration in planning decisions. 
The relevant policies in this case are as follows:

DM9 High Quality Design
DM10              Housing Design and Quality

Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received  

Number of neighbours consulted:  7
Site notice posted:  25/08/2017
Responses received:  No response received from neighbours 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL:  The Committee OBJECTED to this application on the grounds 
that it was out of keeping with the street scene. Contrary to Policies CP2 (iv) and CP7 of Epping 
Forest District Council’s adopted Local Plan & Alterations.

Main Issues and Considerations:

The proposed house is a significantly different proposal to that previously approved in 2016.  Main 
changes from the previously approved design, EPF/1129/16, are:

 The basement, which contained a parking space, has been deleted. The house as now 
proposed would have an integral garage.

 Double gates to front boundary
 Change to roof form, from a crown roof with front and rear dormers to a roof with three 

gable ends on the front and three gable ends on the rear.  This achieves a more convincing 
two-storey form, especially in the front elevation, and a slight reduction in overall height.

 An open fronted canopy above a single door with glazing to both sides to replace front bay 
with glazed corners and double doors

 Use of rain screens to a number of windows, mostly prominently to the first floor window of 
the central bay. 

The garage and driveway would provide two parking spaces and as such the proposal is 
considered acceptable with regard to parking. Double gates on the frontage are not a feature of 
this part of Spareleaze Hill though two pairs of double gates are on the frontage of no. 45, on the 
opposite side of the street.  The property now has an in and out drive arrangement. The proposed 
parking provision would change this arrangement with the plans showing new trees in the left hand 
corner of the frontage when viewed from the street. Taking parking and landscaping in balance it is 
considered that the proposal would be advantageous to the streetscene and therefore acceptable 
subject to conditions to ensure landscaping, including the detailed appearance of the double gates 
at the frontage.

Houses along Spareleaze Hill vary in the roof forms used though the townscape is generally 
characterised by the main roof form being hipped. Nevertheless a number of properties have 
gables to front bays. This element of the proposal is considered as part of the overall appearance 
of the proposed house addressed below.

The plot is some 18m wide and the built form would take some 16m of this width. This width of 
built form would be two-storey with roof of front gables above. 

As with the design of the replacement house previously approved, the proposed house would have 
a marked contemporary appearance. The replacement house would be set in a street scene of 
relatively mixed appearance, where more recent replacement houses now mix with houses of 

Page 73



more traditional roof forms and external materials. Given the setting it is considered that the 
contemporary design would not jar with houses around it, despite being set within a pleasant 
suburban streetscene of houses to traditional designs.  However, to a considerable extent, mature 
vegetation in the locality would ameliorate visual contrasts of the proposed house with older 
houses. In terms of setting and height the proposed house would respect existing development in 
the vicinity. It is considered that the design could be accommodated within the character of the 
setting.

In comparison with the approved design, which remains capable of being implemented, the 
proposal is considered to be a more refined scheme.  The replacement of the crown roof with a 
fully pitched structure together with providing a simpler form to the front and rear elevations based 
on three gables achieves an improved degree of visual coherence.  Officers therefore conclude 
the revised design contrasts favourably with that approved, which remains a fall back position for 
the Applicant and consequently is a material consideration.

It is considered that; the proposal would safeguard, if not enhance, the setting as is required by 
policy CP2.

With regard to the impact of the proposal on the amenities of occupiers of neighbouring property, 
ground rises to the rear and a rear garden depth of some 22m would be retained. Given this 
distance it is considered that neighbours to the rear, at 86 and at 88 Tycehurst Hill would not be 
materially adversely effected in terms of loss of outlook.

The house at 44 Spareleaze Hill is orientated to the southwest of the application property and on 
lower ground. Given the orientation it is considered that the proposal would lead to no material 
loss of light and given the distance by which the house is set off the side boundary, the ground 
floor plan shows a distance of 1.1m, it is considered that the impact to outlook would be 
acceptable.

48 Spareleaze Hill is orientated to the northeast of the application property and set on slightly 
higher ground. The ground floor plan shows the flank wall of the proposed house 1.3m from the 
side boundary. It is considered that the proposal would have no material adverse impact to the 
occupiers of no. 48 with regard to light and outlook that could reasonably constitute a reason for 
refusal.

Subject to the imposition of a condition requiring side sight screens, the rear terraces are 
considered acceptable with regard to any overlooking of neighbours to the sides, 44 and 48 
Spareleaze Hill. The terrace would be some 23m from the rear elevation of 88 Tycehurst Hill and 
some 27m from the rear elevation of 86 Tycehurst Hill. The terrace would be only some 10m from 
a corner at the rear boundary of 88 Tycehurst Hill. Such a distance would normally be acceptable 
on a site with level surrounding land. Furthermore, surrounding properties have mature gardens 
with trees and vegetation giving good screening and 88 Tycehurst Hill appears to be on slightly 
higher ground than the application property. It is considered that no material adverse impact that 
could reasonably form a reason for refusal would result to the occupiers of 88 Tycehurst Hill. 

Two gable end windows, each to a bedroom on the second floor, would be some 20m from the 
rear boundary. It is considered that any overlooking from these rear gable windows of the 
proposed house would be not be materially greater than already exists from existing first floor 
windows.

Conclusion:

Notwithstanding its contemporary appearance, the proposal would adequately protect the quality 
of the built environment considered in the context of its setting and not have a detrimental impact 
on the amenities of the residents who live in close proximity of the site.  Indeed, the proposal 

Page 74



would have a similar impact to the approved scheme in relation to the living conditions of 
neighbours but would achieve an enhancement of the appearance of the site and, as a 
consequence, enhance the character and appearance of the locality.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Jonathan Doe
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564103

or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 75

mailto:contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk


123

 

58.2m

3

(Residential Further Education Centre)

D
ebden H

ouse

1

Debden House

C
ottages

The Studio

Algars

Harts Cottage

Oak Field
House

The Lodge

Elm Cottage
E

N
G

LA
N

D
'S

 LA
N

E

D
EB

D
EN

 R
O

A
D

GP

LB

DEBDEN GREEN

Pond

Sinks

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council
Agenda Item Number 7

Unauthorised reproduction infringes 
Crown Copyright and may lead to 
prosecution or civil proceedings.

Contains Ordnance Survey Data. © 
Crown Copyright 2013 EFDC License No: 
100018534

Contains Royal Mail Data. © Royal Mail 
Copyright & Database Right 2013

Application Number: EPF/2252/17
Site Name: Oak Field House, Debden Road, 

Loughton, IG10 2NY
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 76



Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/2252/17

SITE ADDRESS: Oak Field House
Debden Road
Loughton
Essex
IG10 2NY

PARISH: Loughton

WARD: Loughton St Johns

APPLICANT: Mr Tony Lomas

DESCRIPTION OF 
PROPOSAL:

Erection of a general-purpose outbuilding, in the south east part of 
the grounds, constructed from oak timber with a pitched, slate-tile 
roof, designed to match the existing structure on the northern 
boundary (which is used to garage cars and to provide separate 
swimming pool plant and changing rooms).

RECOMMENDED 
DECISION:

Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=598614

CONDITIONS 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until details of the retained landscaping (trees / hedges) and their methods of 
protection (in accordance with BS5837:2012 -Trees in relation to design, demolition 
and construction Recommendations) have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall only be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details unless the Local Planning Authority gives its 
written consent to any variation.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation for approval is contrary to  an 
objection from a local council,  which is material to the planning merits of the proposal, (pursuant 
to the constitution, part three: scheme of delegation, appendix 3.). 

Description of Site:

Large dwelling house located in extensive grounds in the Green Belt close to the north of 
Loughton. The house is not listed nor does it lie in a Conservation area. 
 

Page 77

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/NIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=598614


Description of Proposal:

Erection of a general-purpose outbuilding, in the south east part of the grounds,  constructed from 
oak timber with a pitched, slate-tile roof, designed to match the existing structure on the northern 
boundary (which is used to garage cars and to provide separate swimming pool plant and 
changing rooms). 
 
Relevant History:

EPF/1427/17 – The same outbuilding as now applied for was refused permission - because in the 
absence of a tree survey and tree protection plan the proposal could have had a detrimental 
impact on the health and well being of trees close to the proposed outbuilding.

Policies Applied:

Adopted Local Plan:
DBE1 – Design of new buildings.
DBE9 – Loss of amenity.
LL10 - Adequacy of provision for landscape retention
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt

NPPF:
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has been adopted as national policy since March 
2012. Paragraph 215 states that due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing plans 
according to their degree of consistency with the framework.  The above policies are broadly 
consistent with the NPPF and should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Draft Local Plan
At the current time, only limited material weight can be applied to the Draft Local Plan, however 
the Draft Plan and evidence base should be considered as a material consideration in planning 
decisions. The relevant policies in this case are as follows:
- DM9 - High Quality Design
- DM5 – Green Infrastructure: Design of Development
- SP5 - Green Belt and District Open Land

  
Summary of Representations:

LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – The Committee objected to this application on the grounds that it 
would be an intrusion to the neighbour’s amenity.

NEIGHBOURS – 3 properties notified but no replies received.

EFDC TREES SECTION – A tree survey and trees constraints plan for trees in the immediate 
vicinity of this proposal have been submitted. These demonstrate that the location of the 
outbuilding is outside the calculated rooting area of these trees. We have no objection subject to 
an appropriate tree protection condition being imposed on any consent.

Issues and Considerations:

This is a minor householder development. A timber outbuilding measuring 7m in length by 6m in 
width, and 2.4m to eaves and 3.9m to ridge, is proposed in these very extensive grounds in the 
southern section of the site. The outbuilding would be positioned a considerable distance of 30m 
away from the front elevation of Algers, the neighbouring house to the south. Moreover, there are 
many mature trees in the applicants garden that lie between the proposed outbuilding and Algars. 
A tree survey and tree protection details have been submitted and the Councils tree section are 

Page 78



satisfied that these trees will not be adversely affected. Consequently, the modest size of the 
outbuilding, plus the very effective tree screen alongside it, will ensure that there is a very limited 
or minimal impact on the amenity and outlook of residents of the neighbouring Algars. In this 
context therefore the proposal will not be an intrusion to the neighbour’s amenity as indicated by 
the Town Council.

The outbuilding will have timber walls and a ridge roof covered with slate tiles. Its appearance is 
typical of a domestic outbuilding and is acceptable.

The site lies in the Green Belt. The very modest size of the building, plus the extensive tree 
screening on the site, including trees and vegetation on the front boundary, will mean that the 
proposed outbuilding will have a negligible impact on the openness of the Green Belt. 
  
Conclusion:

The proposal complies with relevant policies, and for the reasons set out in the report above it is 
recommended that conditional planning permission be granted. 

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS ATTENDING THE COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEES
	Area Planning Subcommittee South - members photo sheet 17-18

	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	28 Development Control

	7 Development Control

